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STATE OF WISCONSIN CIRCUIT COURT BROWN COUNTY 
                                                   
 

STATE OF WISCONSIN 
 Plaintiff, 
 
              vs. 
 
WESLEY JAMES BRICE 
1151 University Avenue 
Green Bay, WI 54302 
DOB: 09/29/1998 
Sex/Race: M/W 
Eye Color: Brown 
Hair Color: Black 
Height: 5 ft 06 in 
Weight: 260 lbs 
 Defendant. 
 

DA Case No.: 2021BR001955 
Assigned DDA: Wendy W Lemkuil 
Agency Case No.: 21-212929 
 
Court Case No.:  21CF_____ 
ATN:  
 

 
CRIMINAL COMPLAINT 

 

Complainant, an Deputy District Attorney, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes and says 
that: 
 
Count 1: FIRST DEGREE INTENTIONAL HOMICIDE, USE OF A DANGEROUS WEAPON, 
REPEATER 
 
The above-named defendant on or about Monday, March 15, 2021, in the City of Green Bay, 
Brown County, Wisconsin, did cause the death of GJB, with intent to kill that person, contrary 
to sec. 940.01(1)(a), 939.63(1)(b), 939.62(1)(c) Wis. Stats., a Class A Felony, and upon 
conviction shall be sentenced to imprisonment  for life.  
 
And further, invoking the provisions of sec. 939.63(1)(b) Wis. Stats., because the defendant 
committed this offense while using a dangerous weapon, the maximum term of imprisonment 
for the felony may be increased by not more than 5 years. 
 
And further, invoking the provisions of sec. 939.62(1)(c) Wis. Stats., because the defendant is 
a repeater, having been convicted of Felony Possession with Intent to Deliver THC in Brown 
County on or about April 2, 2018, which conviction(s) remain of record and unreversed, the 
maximum term of imprisonment for the underlying crime may be increased 6 years if the prior 
conviction was for a felony. 
 
Count 2: FIRST DEGREE RECKLESSLY ENDANGERING SAFETY, USE OF A 
DANGEROUS WEAPON, REPEATER 
 
The above-named defendant on or about Monday, March 15, 2021, in the City of Green Bay, 
Brown County, Wisconsin, did recklessly endanger the safety of JLA, under circumstances 
which show utter disregard for human life, contrary to sec. 941.30(1), 939.63(1)(b), 
939.62(1)(c) Wis. Stats., a Class F Felony, and upon conviction may be fined not more than 
Twenty Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000), or imprisoned not more than twelve (12) years and 
six (6) months, or both.  
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And further, invoking the provisions of sec. 939.63(1)(b) Wis. Stats., because the defendant 
committed this offense while using a dangerous weapon, the maximum term of imprisonment 
for the felony may be increased by not more than 5 years. 
 
And further, invoking the provisions of sec. 939.62(1)(c) Wis. Stats., because the defendant is 
a repeater, having been convicted of Felony Possession with Intent to Deliver THC in Brown 
County on or about April 2, 2018, which conviction(s) remain of record and unreversed, the 
maximum term of imprisonment for the underlying crime may be increased 6 years if the prior 
conviction was for a felony. 
 
Count 3: FIRST DEGREE RECKLESSLY ENDANGERING SAFETY, REPEATER 
 
The above-named defendant on or about Monday, March 15, 2021, in the City of Green Bay, 
Brown County, Wisconsin, did recklessly endanger the safety of JTH, under circumstances 
which show utter disregard for human life, contrary to sec. 941.30(1), 939.62(1)(c) Wis. Stats., 
a Class F Felony, and upon conviction may be fined not more than Twenty Five Thousand 
Dollars ($25,000), or imprisoned not more than twelve (12) years and six (6) months, or both.  
 
And further, invoking the provisions of sec. 939.62(1)(c) Wis. Stats., because the defendant is 
a repeater, having been convicted of Felony Possession with Intent to Deliver THC in Brown 
County on or about April 2, 2018, which conviction(s) remain of record and unreversed, the 
maximum term of imprisonment for the underlying crime may be increased 6 years if the prior 
conviction was for a felony. 
 
Count 4: FELONY INTIMIDATION OF A VICTIM, REPEATER 
 
The above-named defendant on or about Monday, March 15, 2021, in the City of Green Bay, 
Brown County, Wisconsin, knowingly and maliciously did attempt to dissuade or prevent JLA, 
who has been the victim of a crime, from making a report of the victimization to a law 
enforcement agency, where the act is accompanied by force or violence or attempted force or 
violence, contrary to sec. 940.45(1), 939.62(1)(b) Wis. Stats., a Class G Felony, and upon 
conviction may be fined not more than Twenty Five Thousand Dollars ($25,000), or imprisoned 
not more than ten (10) years, or both.  
 
And further, invoking the provisions of sec. 939.62(1)(b) Wis. Stats., because the defendant is 
a repeater, having been convicted of Felony Possession with Intent to Deliver THC in Brown 
County on or about April 2, 2018, which conviction(s) remain of record and unreversed, the 
maximum term of imprisonment for the underlying crime may be increased 4 years if the prior 
conviction was for a felony. 
 
Count 5: FALSE IMPRISONMENT, REPEATER 
 
The above-named defendant on or about Monday, March 15, 2021, in the City of Green Bay, 
Brown County, Wisconsin, did intentionally confine or restrain JLA, without that person's 
consent, and with the knowledge that he had no lawful authority to do so, contrary to sec. 
940.30, 939.62(1)(b) Wis. Stats., a Class H Felony, and upon conviction may be fined not 
more than Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000), or imprisoned not more than six (6) years, or both.  
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And further, invoking the provisions of sec. 939.62(1)(b) Wis. Stats., because the defendant is 
a repeater, having been convicted of Felony Possession with Intent to Deliver THC in Brown 
County on or about April 2, 2018, which conviction(s) remain of record and unreversed, the 
maximum term of imprisonment for the underlying crime may be increased 4 years if the prior 
conviction was for a felony. 
 
Count 6: SUBSTANTIAL BATTERY, USE OF A DANGEROUS WEAPON, REPEATER 
 
The above-named defendant on or about Monday, March 15, 2021, in the City of Green Bay, 
Brown County, Wisconsin, did cause substantial bodily harm to JLA, by an act done with intent 
to cause bodily harm to that person, contrary to sec. 940.19(2), 939.63(1)(c), 939.62(1)(b) Wis. 
Stats., a Class I Felony, and upon conviction may be fined not more than Ten Thousand 
Dollars ($10,000), or imprisoned not more than three (3) years and six (6) months, or both.  
 
And further, invoking the provisions of sec. 939.63(1)(c) Wis. Stats., because the defendant 
committed this offense while using a dangerous weapon, the maximum term of imprisonment 
for the underlying crime may be increased by not more than four (4) years. 
 
And further, invoking the provisions of sec. 939.62(1)(b) Wis. Stats., because the defendant is 
a repeater, having been convicted of Felony Possession with Intent to Deliver THC in Brown 
County on or about April 2, 2018, which conviction(s) remain of record and unreversed, the 
maximum term of imprisonment for the underlying crime may be increased 4 years if the prior 
conviction was for a felony. 
 
Count 7: FELONY CRIMINAL DAMAGE TO PROPERTY, REPEATER 
 
The above-named defendant on or about Monday, March 15, 2021, in the City of Green Bay, 
Brown County, Wisconsin, did intentionally cause damage to the physical property of another,, 
belonging to RumRunners, without that person's consent, whereby said property was reduced 
in value by more than $2,500, contrary to sec. 943.01(2)(d), 939.62(1)(b) Wis. Stats., a Class I 
Felony, and upon conviction may be fined not more than Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000), or 
imprisoned not more than three (3) years and six (6) months, or both.  
 
And further, invoking the provisions of sec. 939.62(1)(b) Wis. Stats., because the defendant is 
a repeater, having been convicted of Felony Possession with Intent to Deliver THC in Brown 
County on or about April 2, 2018, which conviction(s) remain of record and unreversed, the 
maximum term of imprisonment for the underlying crime may be increased 4 years if the prior 
conviction was for a felony. 
 
Count 8: OBSTRUCTING AN OFFICER, REPEATER 
 
The above-named defendant on or about Monday, March 15, 2021, in the City of Green Bay, 
Brown County, Wisconsin, did knowingly obstruct an officer, while such officer was doing an 
act in an official capacity and with lawful authority,, contrary to sec. 946.41(1), 939.62(1)(a) 
Wis. Stats., a Class A Misdemeanor, and upon conviction may be fined not more than Ten 
Thousand Dollars ($10,000), or imprisoned not more than nine (9) months, or both.  
 
And further, invoking the provisions of sec. 939.62(1)(a) Wis. Stats., because the defendant is 
a repeater, having been convicted of Felony Possession with Intent to Deliver THC in Brown 

Case 2021CF000520 Document 2 Filed 04-01-2021 Page 3 of 25



STATE OF WISCONSIN - VS -  Wesley James Brice 

03/31/2021 4 

County on or about April 2, 2018, which conviction(s) remain of record and unreversed, the 
maximum term of imprisonment for the underlying crime may be increased to not more than 2 
years. 
 
Count 9: DISORDERLY CONDUCT, USE OF A DANGEROUS WEAPON, REPEATER 
 
The above-named defendant on or about Monday, March 15, 2021, in the City of Green Bay, 
Brown County, Wisconsin, while in a public or private place, did engage in abusive, boisterous, 
indecent, profane, unreasonably loud, violent or otherwise disorderly conduct, under 
circumstances in which such conduct tended to cause or provoke a disturbance, contrary to 
sec. 947.01(1), 939.63(1)(a), 939.62(1)(a) Wis. Stats., a Class B Misdemeanor, and upon 
conviction may be fined not more than One Thousand Dollars ($1,000), or imprisoned not 
more than ninety (90) days, or both.  
 
And further, invoking the provisions of sec. 939.63(1)(a) Wis. Stats., because the defendant 
committed this crime while using a dangerous weapon, the maximum term of imprisonment 
may be increased by not more than 6 months. 
 
And further, invoking the provisions of sec. 939.62(1)(a) Wis. Stats., because the defendant is 
a repeater, having been convicted of Felony Possession with Intent to Deliver THC in Brown 
County on or about April 2, 2018, which conviction(s) remain of record and unreversed, the 
maximum term of imprisonment for the underlying crime may be increased to not more than 2 
years. 
 
Complainant is an Deputy District Attorney with the Brown County District Attorney’s Office and 
knows of the above offense(s) on information and belief based upon: 
 
PROBABLE CAUSE:    
 
The complainant, being duly sworn on oath, swears that she has had the opportunity to review 
the police reports of the Green Bay Police Department and other documents supporting this 
complaint, which are the types of reports and documents kept in the ordinary course of 
business, which complainant believes to be truthful and reliable because they have proven to 
be truthful and reliable on numerous occasions in the past. 
 
The complaint further asserts that based upon her review of the reports and/or supporting 
documents, the incidents alleged in Brown County, Wisconsin. 
 
1.  Your complainant's review of the reports of Officer Alexander Carlson of the Green Bay 
Police Department, who indicates:  On March 15, 2021 at approximately 1938 hours, while 
working for the Green Bay Police Department, I, Officer A. Carlson, along with other officers 
were dispatched to RumRunners located at 715 S. Broadway for a bartender who had been 
stabbed at Rockabilly’s.  Notes stated it was a male white suspect with a gray hoodie, 200 lbs., 
with a beard and he still had the knife when he left running north on Broadway and he went 
behind the buildings.  Notes updated stating there was a vehicle that was smashed into a 
building.  While en route to the call I heard officers state they were out in front of Richard 
Craniums located on S. Broadway, in the City of Green Bay, Brown County, WI. 
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I arrived on scene and observed multiple officers had multiple patrons at gun point.   There 
was one person in front of a vehicle, there was one person to the back and there was also an 
elderly male who was later identified as G.J.B. DOB: 11/17/1950 who was inside the vehicle 
and full of blood.  G.J.B. had a shocked look on his face as he did not know currently what was 
going on.  At this time the male to the rear of the vehicle who was identified as Wesley J. 
Brice (09/29/1998) was shouting things like, he is the real God at which time officers informed 
me that he needed to be placed into custody.  I then with the assistance of Officer Snyder 
placed Wesley into custody and while doing so he began to ramble about being the God and 
that we were all pussies.  At this time, I assisted Officer Garrick Fisher to clear the vehicle that 
G.J.B. was in.  When G.J.B. stood up I could see a huge wave of blood that had flowed from 
his shirt.  It appeared G.J.B. was stabbed multiple times at which time once G.J.B. was 
removed from the vehicle I then ran back to my patrol vehicle to grab my medical supplies.  I 
returned to G.J.B. who was full of blood, the blood soaked shirt and jacket, as well as I was 
able to locate a stab wound in his chest, as well as what appeared to be a stab wound in his 
stomach and in his upper right arm.  As officers were able to use QuikClot and chest seals to 
seal G.J.B.’s chest where he was profusely bleeding from and we were also able to use 
QuikClot on his right arm where he was also cut.  There was so much blood on G.J.B. that I 
yelled to patrons of Richard Craniums bar to get us some napkins so we could clear the area 
to assess him for further injuries.  At this time, I started directing other officers to start removing 
G.J.B.’s clothing so we could further assess him for any further injuries.  Green Bay Fire 
Rescue personnel arrived at which time they assisted placing G.J.B. to the cot and I then later 
rode with in the ambulance to the hospital to assist with medical needs for G.J.B. 
 
During this time I informed G.J.B. to stay with us, as G.J.B. was consistently fading out of 
consciousness.  G.J.B. had made comments that he could not breathe during the transport.  
Upon arrival at St. Vincent Hospital, G.J.B. had coded and CPR had to be used to bring him 
back with a pulse.   G.J.B. was brought back and eventually coded again and was again 
brought back with CPR by medical staff at which time he was then later brought to surgery. 
 
While I stayed at the hospital, medical staff attended to G.J.B. and I later spoke to the 
bartender from Rockabilly’s identified as J.L.A. (d.o.b. 2/23/93). 
 
I introduced myself to J.L.A. and asked her what happened.  While I was speaking with J.L.A. it 
should be noted that she had bandages on her face, her right armpit area and she stated she 
also had an injury on her right leg; however, I did not view that.  J.L.A. stated she was 
bartending by herself at Rockabilly’s and that all of her usual’s had left. She stated while she 
was cleaning up a guy walked in that she did not know, she has never seen before and stated 
something to the effect of, “I like you.”  She was shocked by this and the male later said, 
“Come here,” to which she said no.  The male then went behind the bar and J.L.A. stated she 
had told him to get out as this was a big no-no for coming behind the bar.  She stated he 
continued to approach her at which time she saw the knife in his hand and then tried to call the 
police.  However, this male had ripped the phone out of her hand and dragged her into the 
men’s room.  She stated he had tried to stab her at which time she was thinking about her two 
kids and she was fighting with the male and she was able to get away.  She stated she did not 
consent to any of the injuries that had been caused and the injuries consistently hurt.    
 
2.  Your complainant's review of the reports of Officer Grant Fischer of the Green Bay Police 
Department, who indicates:  On Monday, March 15, 2021, I, Officer Fischer, was in full uniform 
patrolling the City of Green Bay as 2B3, riding double with Officer Benjamin Snyder.  At 
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approximately 1937 hours, I responded to 715 S. Broadway Street, RumRunners in the City of 
Green Bay, Brown County, Wisconsin, for a report of a bartender who had just been stabbed.  
Officer Snyder who was driving who engaged his lights and sirens and officers drove 
emergency to the call.  While en route, dispatch informed officers that the male was wearing a 
gray hoodie and had a beard and was approximately 200 lbs.  He had a knife and was running 
north on Broadway. 
 
Officer Snyder and I arrived and parked at 4th Street and S. Broadway.  I looked to the south 
and noticed a vehicle with its door open in the middle of the street.  I noticed there were other 
people frantically running around the vehicle.  I informed Officer Snyder that I believed there 
was some type of active disturbance going on down the street to the south in front of Richard 
Craniums bar.  Myself and Officer Snyder ran up to the vehicle and as we were running a tall 
male white wearing a jacket had had a lime green hoodie ran out of the car and began 
grabbing someone from the vehicle.  As we run up, the male pulled another male out and 
threw him on the ground.  At this time, Officer Snyder had lethal cover and I had my taser out 
and both of us began yelling at the two of them to get on the ground with their hands up.  The 
male who had been grabbed out of the vehicle was lying on the ground at the back of the 
vehicle and the other male laid out on his belly with his arms out and was listening to my 
commands in front of the vehicle.  Officer Garrick Fisher was on scene within a few seconds 
and officers on scene noticed there was a male in the driver’s seat of the vehicle who had 
blood on his chest and was holding a knife in his left hand.  Officers ordered the male to put 
the knife down.  The male dropped the knife and I yelled to Officer Fisher to secure the knife.  
Officer Fisher then was able to step on the knife and toss it back with his foot away from the 
scene.  Officers then held the three males at gun point and taser point until other officers were 
able to come on scene to help secure them. 
 
As other officers arrived, officers were able to get the male who had been grabbed out of the 
vehicle into handcuffs and the taller male who had grabbed the other male out of the vehicle 
into handcuffs and detained.  Other officers on scene then got the male G.J.B. who was in the 
driver’s seat out of the vehicle and began rendering aid to him as he had multiple stab wounds.  
Once I handcuffed and detained the original taller male with the lime green sweatshirt M.P.W. 
and sat him down he was explaining to me that he had heard someone saying that someone 
was getting stabbed in the vehicle and he grabbed the person out who was stabbing him.  I 
then went and helped other officers bring the male who was now believed to be the suspect 
who had been thrown out of the vehicle by M.P.W..  This male suspect was identified as 
Wesley J Brice DOB:9/29/1998. 
 
As officers brought Wesley over to the squad car, he was not making coherent sentences and 
was saying, “I am God.”   Other officers on scene then secured Wesley in the squad car.  
Officers had the windows rolled down and could hear Wesley still making statements that did 
not make any sense.  Wesley then began repeating his name over and over again saying, 
“Wesley James Brice, Wesley James Brice.”  It was clear to officers on scene that Wesely was 
in some sort of excited mental state and did not know what was going on.  It should be noted 
that Wesley did not have any stab wounds on him and matched the description of the original 
complaint of the person who had the knife.  At this time I was instructed by one of the 
sergeants on scene that we need to bring Wesley to the police department to be interviewed 
and detained for the time being. 
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Officer Fisher and I rode together in his squad car and were followed by Officer Snyder to the 
police department to bring Wesley into one of the interview rooms. 
 
Upon arrival at the Green Bay Police Department officers escorted Wesley from the squad car.  
Wesley was not very cooperative and was often tensing up and trying to push his feet into the 
ground so he did not have to go into the interview room.  Myself and Officer Snyder used a C-
lock position on Wesley’s arms to pull him into the interview room and sat him down.   At this 
time Wesley was still making odd statements, saying his name over and over again.  Wesley 
then began looking at the floor and began saying, “Floor, floor, floor and floor.”  Officers sat 
him down in one of the chairs as he was still in handcuffs and left him alone in the interview 
room.  While observing the camera Wesley stood up multiple times and walked around.  At 
one point he slipped his jeans off with his feet and took his pants off.  Wesley would frequently 
ask, “Do you believe in God.”  As detectives were getting called in we were informed by them 
that we would need to bring Wesley up to Aurora BayCare Hospital to get medically cleared 
and to keep him there to potentially gain his blood results. 
 
Officer Snyder, Officer Fisher and myself then attempted to get Wesley into the squad car to 
go to Aurora BayCare Hospital.  We again put him in C-lock to get him out in the hallway.  
Wesley began to fight with officers and tensing up and kicking.  Officers pushed him against 
the wall and then brought him back into the interview room where officers put him in one of the 
wraps that were out of the sergeants’ vehicle.  Officer Snyder, Officer Fisher, Officer Wolfe, Lt. 
Allen and I all assisted in putting the wrap on.  Officers then brought Wesley back out to the 
squad car.  After this I then rode with Officer Fisher to Aurora BayCare Hospital and we were 
followed by Officer Snyder. 
 
While driving to Aurora BayCare Hospital, Wesley began puking in the back seat.  At one 
point, Wesley began choking on his puke so officers stopped and pulled over to the side of the 
road to open the spit hood up so he would not choke.  Officers then continued to Aurora 
BayCare Hospital.  At this time, Wesley began making more coherent sentences and began to 
sound more normal, making coherent sentences at some point Wesley told myself and Officer 
Fisher that he was cold and then he later said, “I didn’t mean to hurt anyone.” Upon arrival at 
Aurora BayCare Hospital, officers escorted Wesley into the hospital room where he continued 
to puke a lot more.  It should be noted that during my interactions with Wesley he mentioned 
that he wanted officers to kill him and he did say that he wanted to die.  . 
 
3.  Your complainant's review of the reports of Officer Jacob Brenteson of the Green Bay 
Police Department, who indicates:  On March 15th, 2021 I, Officer Brenteson in full uniform 
patrol and in a marked squad car was working as unit 2C1. At approximately 1937 hours I 
along with other officers were dispatched to 715 S Broadway, Green Bay, WI 54304, County of 
Brown for a weapons call. CAD notes indicated that a bartender was stabbed at Rockabilly’s. 
The male was described as a male white wearing a gray hoodie, approximately 200 pounds 
and left northbound with the knife. Further notes stated that the suspect vehicle smashed into 
building and was still on scene bearing tribal plate 3C4610. Over the radio I hear Officer Grant 
Fischer say Richard Craniums and it sounded like he was in duress. 
 
Upon arrival Officer Ben Snyder had one individual proned on the road and had him in 
handcuffs. Officer Grant Fischer and Officer Alex Carlson were getting an older male out of the 
driver seat of a blue Jaguar. This individual was later identified by other officers as G.J.B. 
DOB: 11/17/1950 . In getting G.J.B. out I noticed a large amount of red substance that 
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appeared to be blood all over G.J.B. and was dripping off of him. Officers got G.J.B. on the 
ground and began performing life saving measures. G.J.B. had approximately 3 separate stab 
wounds, one the lower right side of his stomach, one on the upper right side of his chest and 
the last on his right bicep. All of the puncher wounds were covered in blood so I was not able 
to determine how large the injuries were. 
 
Rescue was advised to approach and officers assisted with getting G.J.B. into the ambulance. 
I located a black 3-5 inch knife on the roadway with red substance located on the blade which 
appeared to be consistent with blood. I took custody of the knife and later entered it into 
evidence.  I then entered into Richard Craniums bar to see if there was video footage of this 
incident. In doing so I spoke with C.S. who showed myself and Officer Logan Rueckl video 
footage. In watching the footage I saw an individual wearing a gray hooded sweatshirt run 
southbound on S. Broadway towards Richard Craniums. I watched as the male in the gray 
sweatshirt attempted to punch the window out of the blue Jaguar. It appeared as though the 
driver of the Jaguar opened his door and possibly said something to the individual in the gray 
sweatshirt. It was at that time I see the individual in the gray sweatshirt charge at the individual 
in the Jaguar. This concludes what I saw in the video footage. I returned to the bar area and 
spoke with an A.S.R. DOB: 12/10/1999 who was identified by her WI driver’s license. A.S.R. 
stated that she had witnessed much of the incident and attempted to intervene.  
 
I asked A.S.R. if she would be willing to give me a written statement, and she indicated she 
would and stated as follows:  On March 15th, 2021 at approximately 1930 hours A.S.R. and 
her boyfriend A.R. were sitting in their vehicle on S. Broadway in front of Richard Craniums. 
A.S.R. heard a bang so she looked into her passenger mirror and saw a white male, bald in a 
gray sweatshirt and dark blue jeans punching the window of the vehicle behind her. She saw 
the individual first punch the window with his right fist and then elbow the window with his right 
elbow. The individual eventually gained entry into the vehicle and began punching the driver of 
the vehicle. A.S.R. and A.R. exited their vehicle and ran up to the individual. As she got closer 
she heard the driver of the vehicle yell "he's stabbing me, he's stabbing me". A.R. told A.S.R. 
to get help so she ran up to a red Jeep in front of her vehicle and told them to call 911. A.S.R. 
then returned and attempted to pull the individual off of the older man. The individual fell to his 
knees then bar staff tackled him to the ground until officers arrived.  Once released from the 
scene I returned to the Green Bay Police Department were I placed the knife into a knife 
evidence box, signed and sealed the box.  
 
4.  Your complainant's review of the reports of Officer Kevin Bahl of the Green Bay Police 
Department, who indicates:  On Monday March 15th, 2021 I was working for the Green Bay 
Police Department in full uniform and in a full marked squad. At 19:37 hours dispatch received 
a weapons complaint at Rockabilly's (709 S Broadway Green Bay, WI 54304). According to 
call notes the bartender was stabbed and inside the bathroom. The suspect was a M/W, gray 
hoodie, 200 pounds, and had a beard. The suspect was last seen running N/B behind the 
building, but later crashed his car (plate 3c4610). It was unknown where the suspect went and 
the injured party was then last seen at Rum Runners. Call notes also stated someone was 
providing medical attention as the party was stabbed in the throat. Several officer were then 
dispatched to the call. I later requested dispatch add me. 
 
While en route I heard officers near Richard Craniums say that they had two at gun point and 
one at taser. It was later reported the male inside the vehicle they were out with was also 
stabbed. I arrived on scene at 1942 hours at the Richard Craniums location (840 S Broadway) 
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and observed two vehicles stopped in the roadway facing S/B. Officer had three males either 
at gun point or taser. One male, later identified as Wesley J Brice (09/29/1998), was lying face 
down on the ground near the rear driver side of a blue Jaguar  and being taken into custody. 
There was another male, later identified as G.J.B. (11/17/1950), who was in the front driver 
seat of the Jaguar. I parked my squad behind the Jaguar to the left and approached on foot 
where the other officers were originally standing. I was told by Officer Fisher he had the knife 
by his feet. I then held at the Jaguar facing G.J.B. who was bleeding from the upper body 
(chest area). Once another cover officer arrived to assist I want over to the third male, later 
identified by WI/DL as M.P.W. DOB:04/25/1983. M.P.W. was lying face down on the ground in 
between the two cars (in front of the Jaguar also facing S/B was a white Accord near the driver 
side. I then heard M.P.W. at gun point while he was taken into custody. Once M.P.W. was in 
handcuffs. I assisted in patting him down due to the nature of the call (multiple stabbing victims 
and at the time we did not know M.P.W.s involvement). While patting M.P.W. down I told him 
he was being detained until we could figure out what happened. He told me he understood and 
would cooperate. He also told me he was the one that pulled the person off the person who 
was being stabbed. Once M.P.W. was patted down I assisted him to the standing position, 
moved my squad so rescue could approach and assisted other officers (retrieved my medical 
bag to assist but rescue then arrived on scene before it was needed). While walking near the 
squad with Wesley I could hear he talking/screaming about him saying he was “God” or “I am 
God”. 
 
I then went back to M.P.W. and put him in my squad. I asked M.P.W., who had just told me 
someone came to him and told him someone was being stabbed, what the person looked like. 
He told me he did not know exactly but was a female, Hispanic maybe with a coat on. I then 
went into Richard Craniums and asked if anyone witness the stabbing. I then made 
contact with A.R. DOB:12/26/1998 and A.S.R. DOB:12/10/199 who I both later identified by 
WI/DL. Both appeared to be shaken up and were in shock. I asked if they were injured/needed 
medical attention. They both said no, but told me they witnessed the stabbing but did not know 
who the people were. I asked them the suspect description. They both said a male white with a 
sweater, coat, and a bald head. After I got the initial information I asked to talk to one of them 
alone for a few minutes. A.R. then got up and walked over to another part of the bar with me 
and confirmed what he just told me. He stated they were on their way back and were stopped 
at the train when they heard something behind them. When they got out the saw someone 
being stabbed and went to get help. The male M.P.W. came from the bar (Richard Craniums) 
and pulled the guy off the person who was being stabbed before police arrived.  After receiving 
this information I asked if they would give me written statements. They both said yes and I 
went outside per their request and turned off they car and gave them the keys back. It should 
also be noticed that the Jaguar was also running too. I then went back to my squad and 
unhandcuffed M.P.W. and thanked him for his heroics and asked him if he would be willing to 
give me a written statement. He asked if he would have to testify. I told him he might but at this 
point he might have to anyway. He agreed and asked to have a smoke and get his hat first. He 
then did so and walked over to my squad for a statement. M.P.W. stated he was at Richard 
Craniums at approximately 7:30 PM when he saw a bunch of people running and then heard 
sirens and lights and went outside. Once outside someone came up and was asking for help 
as a person was being stabbed.  The person who was stabbing the person was on top of the 
victim who was inside the car. There was no one else in the car when I got there. Both people 
were in the front seat (driver seat, but spread out across the front row). The male who was 
stabbing the person told me to leave him the fuck alone. The person who was being stabbed 
kept saying help me. After I pulled the person who was stabbing the other male off, I put him in 
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a choke hold. The police then arrived on scene and ordered us to get down. I do not remember 
what hand he had the knife in.  I later confirmed with M.P.W. his statement was true and 
accurate to the best of his knowledge before he signed it. 
 
After collecting M.P.W.'s statement I obtained a statement from A.R. who stated at 
approximately 7:30 PM I was in the passenger seat of my girlfriend A.S.R.'s car when we were 
stopped at the train in front of Richard Craniums (840 S Broadway) heading S/B. A.S.R. was 
driving we heard a commotion outside and there was a guy yelling and banging on a guy’s car. 
I went to go look and see what it was and there was a guy stabbing another guy. The person 
who was stabbing the other person was a M/W wearing a coat, sweater, and was bald. After 
the guy was getting stabbed I ran inside the bar to get help. When I saw the person getting 
stabbed I went to the driver side of the vehicle and was about 5 feet away. The stabbing took 
place inside the car in the front driver seat. I think the person was holding the victim down with 
his left hand and was stabbing him with his right. I could not see exactly what he had in his 
hand to stab him. When I asked for help a taller male, later identified as M.P.W. came and 
pulled the person who as stabbing the male away. The two police officer arrived on scene a 
short time later. I later confirmed with A.R. his statement was true and accurate to the best of 
his knowledge before he signed it. After obtaining A.R.'s statement, I assisted A.R. and A.S.R. 
while they removed their vehicle. I then held the scene from S Broadway and 4th St until DPW 
arrived to block it off with barricades. 
 
5.  Your complainant's review of the reports of Officer Benjamin Snyder of the Green Bay 
Police Department, who indicates:  On March 15, 2021 at approximately 1937 hours, I, Officer 
Benjamin Snyder, was working in a uniformed patrol capacity with Officer Grant Fischer for the 
Green Bay Police Department.  I responded to the area of 715 S. Broadway, City of Green 
Bay, Brown County, Wisconsin for the report of a bartender being stabbed at Rockabilly’s and 
was also notified over the radio that a suspect was a male white wearing a gray hoodie, 
approximately 200 lbs. with a beard and had the knife when he left running on foot.  Officer 
Fischer and I were relatively close to the area so we responded and pulled up at 4th Street and 
Broadway.  We looked to our left and saw the bars that were in question being Rum Runners 
and Rockabilly’s and looked to our right and in front of the Richard Craniums bar there were 
several vehicles stopped in the road waiting for a train, but that’s not what caught my attention.  
There seemed to be a panicked frenzy surrounding the vehicles that were stopped and there 
seemed to be something very wrong.  I witnessed, as I got closer, a male who was larger in 
stature near the driver’s side door of a vehicle that was parked in the street waiting for the train 
that seemed to be tugging on somebody trying to get them out of the driver’s seat.  As I got 
closer, I could see that there was something clearly not right with the situation.  I immediately 
drew my pistol and began to give commands to the people at the driver’s side door of this 
vehicle.  The male who was tugging at somebody from that driver’s side passenger 
compartment appeared to immediately comply with police commands.  The male who was 
wearing a gray hoodie who appeared to be heavier set with a beard did not immediately 
comply, but he started to turn towards officers and I could see that the person sitting in the 
driver’s seat who was an elderly appearing male had a knife in his hand.  The male with the 
beard and the gray sweatshirt obeyed commands and laid on his belly on the ground near the 
rear of the vehicle.  I held him at gunpoint until other officers arrived.  While I was doing this, 
other officers tended to the victim of the driver’s seat who was absolutely covered in blood and 
identified as G.J.B.  The male with the beard and the gray sweatshirt who I was holding at gun 
point, who I believed to be the suspect of this stabbing at this point was saying things 
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pertaining to God and saying that he was as such.  Officer Logan Rueckl arrived and assisted 
me in taking this male into custody. 
 
This suspect male was placed into the rear passenger’s compartment of squad car 41, which 
was the squad of Officer Garrick Fisher.  The suspect male would not answer questions about 
his identity and continued to ramble on several times about him being God and asking officers 
if we believed that we did not believe and that we needed to believe, things of that nature.  He 
began to ramble a name, repeatedly saying, “Wesley J. Brice, Wesley J. Brice.” I conducted a 
GERP search of this individual and located mugshot photos for Wesley J. Brice that appeared 
to be consistent with the male I had detained.  I indexed this male and as well reference 
Department of Transportation (DOT) identity care photos and positively identified this male as 
Wesley J. Brice DOB:9/29/998.  By this point, many other officers were on scene and were 
assisting with a multiple scene incident.  Officers transported Wesley Brice to the Green Bay 
Police Department and into an interview room.  To this point, Wesley appeared to be possibly 
under the influence or in an excited delirium state, not making much sense and did not appear 
to be oriented whatsoever.  When we got to the interview room, I could clearly see that there 
was blood stains all over Wesley, of what I took photos of.  Wesley was placed in this room 
and continued to be less than oriented, making incoherent ramblings, speaking of God and the 
floor, while also repeating his name several times over.  It should be noted up to this point 
there were several times where Wesley had stated that officers should kill him.  Detectives 
Gering and Graf met with us in the interview rooms and advised us that they would not be 
interviewing him at this time and we should transport him to a hospital and begin EM-1 
paperwork for him. 
 
The three of us, being Officer Garrick Fisher, Officer Grant Fischer and I then proceeded to 
transport Wesley to Aurora BayCare Hospital.  But before doing so, Wesley had begun to 
exhibit extreme uncooperative behavior. 
 
We determined that it would be best for Wesley, officers and hospital staff that Wesley be 
placed into the wrap and we proceeded to do so.  While doing so, Wesley was very much not 
cooperative and again said several times that officers should kill him.  We were then able to 
place Wesley into the rear of Officer Garrick Fisher’s squad car again and proceeded to 
transport him to the hospital.  While on the way, Officer Fisher needed to stop and as I got out 
he informed me that Wesley was complaining of not being able to breathe.  We remedied the 
issue and continued on.  Once at Aurora BayCare Hospital, officers advised me that Wesley 
had vomited in the squad car on the way.   
 
Once at Aurora Bay Care Hospital, I observed that Wesley’s behavior had changed greatly. 
Officer Grant Fischer advised me that he observed this as well and believed that it had 
something to do with him vomiting. Wesley, at that point, was able to carry intelligent 
conversation and politely as for things, such as a bucket for more vomit and concerns over the 
comfort of his restraints. I completed the tentative EM-1 documentation. Shortly after, a 
counselor from the Crisis center had arrived. Officer Grant Fischer and I advised him of the 
incident and of Wesley’s behavior and statements.  
 
6.  Your complainant's review of the reports of Sgt. Thomas Denney of the Green Bay Police 
Department, who indicates:  I, Sgt. Denney, was working as a patrol supervisor for the Green 
Bay Police Department on March 15, 2021.  At approximately 1937 hours, I was dispatched to 
715 S. Broadway Street, RumRunners bar, for a call of a stabbing.  While I was en route, 
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dispatch advised that a female, later identified by officers as J.L.A. DOB:2/23/1993 had been 
stabbed at Rockabilly’s bar, 709 S. Broadway Street, and then ran to RumRunners. 
 
When I was originally dispatched to the call, I was on the far east side of Green Bay and a 
good distance from the location of this call.  While I was en route to the call, officers located 
another victim, as well as the suspect in front of 840 S. Broadway Street, Richard Craniums 
bar.  At the request of Sgt. O'Brien, I responded to RumRunners to assist in getting that side of 
the investigation started.  Officer Ganz, Officer Nickel, and Officer Walvort, were on scene and 
learned that J.L.A. had been stabbed in the bathroom at Rockabilly’s.  I had Officer Walvort set 
up crime scene tape that spanned from the north end of Rockabilly’s bar to the south end of 
RumRunners bar.  There was a maroon Ford Taurus that appeared to have struck the front of 
RumRunners bar.  Officer Ganz reported that the suspect had struck the front of RumRunners 
bar with this vehicle at some point during this incident.  I briefly spoke with the individuals who 
were inside of RumRunners bar including J.T.H. DOB:8/06/1955 who is the owner of 
RumRunners bar.  J.T.H. informed me that J.L.A. had been in the women’s bathroom at 
RumRunners bar after she had been stabbed.  There was some blood spots on the ground, in 
the women’s’ bathroom of RumRunners bar.  I asked J.T.H. to lock the door to the women’s 
bathroom to preserve the evidence inside of the bathroom.  
 
Including J.T.H., there were seven people inside of RumRunners bar at the time of the 
incident.  I quickly spoke with them.  Everyone reported that they had been a witness to at 
least part of this incident.  I asked everyone to remain in the bar and not talk amongst each 
other about what they had observed to preserve the integrity of their recollections.  I then had 
Officer Ainsworth and Officer Rueckl assist me by interviewing each of the witnesses that were 
inside of RumRunners individually in taking statements. 
 
At first, I interviewed P.S.H..  P.S.H. provided with the following information.  At approximately 
1930 hours on 03/15/2021, P.S.H. was sitting at the bar inside of RumRunners.  She observed 
a slim white female who appeared to be in her mid to late twenties run into the bar through the 
front door.  This female was J.L.A.  However, P.S.H. did not know her name but that the 
female was a bartender from Rockabilly’s.  P.S.H. said that J.L.A. was holding her right hand 
on the right side of her face and neck, and she was screaming, “Help me!  Help me!  I’ve been 
stabbed!”  J.T.H. ran out the front door towards Rockabilly’s bar.  Moments after J.T.H. ran out, 
P.S.H. heard a loud noise at the front of the bar and thought it was a gun shot.  Everyone in 
the bar rans towards the back of the bar.  Shortly after that, P.S.H. went to check on J.L.A..  
J.L.A. had locked herself in the women’s bathroom at RumRunners.  J.L.A. was reluctant to 
open the door.  Eventually, J.L.A. agreed to allow P.S.H. and P.S.H.’s friend, A.L.H in, as long 
as they agreed to lock the door to the bathroom behind them.  P.S.H. wrapped her arms 
around J.L.A. in an attempt to comfort her.  Slowly, J.L.A. told P.S.H. what happened.  J.L.A. 
reported the following to P.S.H.; a male who J.L.A. did not know walked into Rockabilly’s bar.  
J.L.A. was bartending at Rockabilly’s bar at the time, and she was the only one inside of 
Rockabilly’s bar.  The male came around the back of the bar.  At some point the male cornered 
J.L.A. in the men’s bathroom.  The male had a knife.  The male stabbed J.L.A..  J.L.A. allowed 
A.L.H. and P.S.H. to look at her wounds.  P.S.H. reported that J.L.A. had approximately three 
inch long “gash” underneath her jaw bone on the right side of her chin.  There was another 
smaller “gash” beneath the gash mentioned above.  Both injuries were bleeding, but they were 
not bleeding profusely.  J.L.A. also showed P.S.H. and A.L.H. that she had a “gash,” on her 
upper right thigh.  A.L.H. and P.S.H. held some paper towel on J.L.A. wounds to put pressure 
on them 
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I then interviewed J.T.H. who indicated that on 03/15/21 at approximately 1937 hours, J.T.H. 
was bartending at RumRunners when he observed J.L.A. run through the front door of 
RumRunners.  J.L.A. was screaming, “Please help me!  I was just stabbed in the bathroom!  
Please help!  Please help!”  J.T.H. ran out the front door or RumRunners as he dialed 9-1-1.  
When J.T.H. got outside he observed a red vehicle that was traveling southbound on S. 
Broadway Street.  The vehicle pulled into the northbound lanes and stopped in front of 
RumRunners.  The vehicle was now facing south in the northbound lanes.  There was one 
occupant in the vehicle.  The occupant was a male, and he was in the driver’s seat.  The male 
glared at J.T.H. intensely with “wild eyes.”  The driver’s window was down and the male 
displayed a knife out the driver’s window.  The tip of the knife was pointed at J.T.H. and J.T.H. 
was on the sidewalk in front of RumRunners at this point.  He was approximately eight to nine 
feet from the male.  J.T.H. was on the phone with the 9-1-1 call taker.  J.T.H. purposely said in 
a voice loud enough for the male to hear, “We need police right away.”  The male continued to 
glare intensely at J.T.H..  The male turned the vehicle towards J.T.H. and accelerated rapidly 
in what J.T.H. believed was an attempt to strike him.  J.T.H. was able to step to the side to 
avoid being struck by the vehicle.  The vehicle struck the front of RumRunners.  The male then 
got out of the vehicle with the knife.  The male was holding the knife in one hand with the tip of 
the knife pointed towards J.T.H..  The thumb side of the males’ hand was pointed up.  The 
male began to move towards J.T.H..  The male was not running, but he was moving towards 
J.T.H., “with a purpose.”  J.T.H. moved away and attempted to keep a vehicle that was parked 
on the road near RumRunners between J.T.H. and the male.  It should be noted that this 
vehicle was a Jeep, and it was actually J.T.H.’s vehicle.  The closest the male got to J.T.H. 
was approximately six feet away. 
 
Eventually, the male began running to the south down the sidewalk on the east side of S. 
Broadway Street.  J.T.H. lost sight of the male as the male was in the area of S. Broadway 
Street and 3rd Street. The male who struck the front of RumRunners with the vehicle and 
threatened J.T.H. with the knife was a white, light skinned black, or white skinned Native 
American male.  He appeared to be approximately 30 years old, 6’ tall, and 235 to 250 lbs.  He 
was wearing long pants and a dark blue or black hooded sweatshirt with the hood up.  The 
male had shaggy dark brown hair and a shaggy beard.  The knife had a blade that appeared to 
be three to four inches in length.  The knife appeared to be possibly be a paring knife.  The 
knife had a fixed blade.   
 
7.  Your complainant's review of the reports of Officer Courtney Ainsworth of the Green Bay 
Police Department, who indicates:  On 03/15/2021, I, Officer Ainsworth was working full 
uniformed patrol in the City of Green Bay as Unit 2C2.  At approximately 7:37 p.m., I heard 
officers get dispatched to a weapons call at RumRunners, 715 S. Broadway Street.  Dispatch 
advised a bartender was stabbed at Rockabilly’s.  Call notes indicated a male white wearing a 
gray hoodie, approximately 200 pounds with a beard had the knife when he left running north 
on Broadway Street behind the buildings.  Dispatch also advised the suspect vehicle smashed 
into the building and had Oneida plate 3C4610.  I then heard officers arrive on scene stating 
they needed additional officers at Richard Cranium’s and then I heard the radio go silent for a 
moment. 
 
I was at the Police Station when I started responding to the area activating my emergency 
lights and sirens.  While en route I heard that the officers on scene had two at gunpoint and 
one at taser point.  When I arrived on scene, I noticed multiple officers surrounding a vehicle in 
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front of the Lion’s Den on S. Broadway Street.  I saw officers were taking two male parties into 
custody and there was one additional male sitting in the front driver’s seat of the vehicle. 
 
As I approached, I observed Officer Garrick Fisher had contact with the male in the driver’s 
seat.  At this time, I saw this male was covered in blood in the chest and stomach area.  Officer 
Fisher and I assisted the male out of the vehicle to lie him down on the pavement to start 
providing him medical assistance.  As we lifted up this male’s shirt, we observed a large 
amount of blood in his stomach area and in his right chest area.  Officer Fisher placed 
pressure on this male’s stomach area where it appeared blood was coming from while I put 
latex gloves on to assist.  I also grabbed a chest seal as I knew there were multiple wounds on 
the male’s chest and stomach that would need to be sealed.   
 
Officers located a wound to the male’s right chest area which we applied a chest seal to and I 
held it down applying pressure.  Other officers and I continued to assess the male to find any 
further wounds which we located one on his shoulder and one on the side of his face.  Officer 
A. Carlson had a bystander bring a package of napkins so that we could start clearing the 
blood from the male’s chest to attempt to locate any further injuries.  At this time, I was talking 
to the male and asked him his name. I heard him say that his first name was G.J.B., but was 
unable to understand his last name when he told me.  It was later determined that this male 
was identified as G.J.B..  We continued to render medical aid to G.J.B. until rescue arrived on 
scene and loaded him up and transported him to St. Vincent Hospital.   
 
At this time, I assisted in blocking off the scene and trying to locate any witnesses or items of 
evidentiary value.  I was asked by Sgt. Tom Denney to come to RumRunners to assist in 
taking statements from witnesses inside the bar.  At RumRunners, Sgt. Denney showed me 
the women’s bathroom where there was a red liquid substance that appeared to be blood.  
Sgt. Denney indicated this is where the female ran to after she was stabbed at Rockabilly’s.  I 
took preliminary photographs of this bathroom and then the bar owner locked it to preserve the 
scene.  I later uploaded these photos to the case.  I then made contact with a female identified 
as T.L.M. who was inside RumRunners during this incident.  T.L.M. indicated she was willing 
to provide a written statement about what she witnessed.  A summary of T.L.M.’s written 
statement is as follows: 
 
On 03/15/2021, T.L.M. and her husband were at RumRunners sitting at the bar near the front 
door.  T.L.M. witnessed a young lady running through the front door yelling for help.  Holding 
her face and stating she was just stabbed.  Other patrons in the bar tended to that lady in the 
bathroom while the owner of the bar grabbed his phone and called 911 and walked outside.  
T.L.M. then saw a maroon sedan approach RumRunners and stopped in the northbound lanes 
of traffic.  T.L.M. saw this vehicle reverse and straighten out so they could hit the bar head-on.  
T.L.M. heard the vehicle crash into the front door area of the bar and saw dust flying.  T.L.M. 
and her husband ran out of the way toward the back of the bar.  T.L.M. stated the driver of the 
vehicle looked directly at her husband and her sitting in the front window and the bar owner 
was still standing outside the front door.  T.L.M. believes the driver of the vehicle was 
attempting to hit the owner or herself or her husband to harm them.  T.L.M. described the 
driver as a male that appeared taller in stature, possibly a Native American, and had shorter 
dark hair.  T.L.M. did not observe any facial hair or any glasses.  T.L.M. stated she did not see 
how the driver exited the vehicle or where he went since she ran to the back of the building.   
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8.  Your complainant's review of the reports of Det. Kevin Kempf of the Green Bay Police 
Department, who indicates:  On 03/15/2021 at approximately 8pm, I was contacted and asked 
to come in and assist in an investigation involving a disturbance and stabbing that had 
occurred on S Broadway.  Upon arriving at the station I joined Detectives Graf, Biller, and 
Leick.  Detective Supervisors Captain Allen, Lt Gering, and Lt. Beguhn were also present and 
briefed the Detectives about the incident. 
 
I was informed that the incident had started on 03/15/2021 at approximately 8:30 pm that night 
at several different locations on S Broadway located in the City of Green Bay.  A suspect 
identified as Brice, Wesley J 09-29-1998 was in custody in the matter and was currently being 
observed in one of the interview rooms. I was told that there are a number of surveillance 
videos that capture what had occurred at several locations and that Brice was detained at the 
scene outside of 840 S Broadway Ave.  It was reported that Brice had walked into 709 S 
Broadway (Rockabilly's Saloon) which was empty of patrons and only had a lone female 
bartender.  The bartender was identified as J.L.A. DOB:2/23/1993.The initial report was that 
Brice had made comments to J.L.A. and then later forced her at knife point into the Men's 
Bathroom in an attempt to possible assault her.  J.L.A. was able to escape from the bathroom 
but was stabbed/cut while escaping. After J.L.A. fled Rockabilly’s Saloon located at 709 S 
Broadway she ran into Rumrunners Bar, 715 S Broadway Street, City of Green Bay, Brown 
County, Wisconsin. Shortly after J.L.A. fled into Rumrunners, Brice who had gotten into a 
vehicle after leaving 709 S Broadway, then intentionally rammed the front of the RumRunners 
Bar. Brice did exit his vehicle and attempted to get into the bar, but Brice was not able to gain 
access into the bar and fled on foot to the south. 
 
Brice then made his way to the south and made contact with a male victim identified as G.J.B. 
DOB: 11/17/1950 who was stopped in his vehicle on S Broadway Street, City of Green Bay, 
Brown County, Wisconsin. G.J.B. was in his vehicle waiting for a train that was crossing in the 
area of 840 S Broadway (Richard Craniums Bar). There was then another incident where Brice 
then attacked G.J.B. with a knife stabbing G.J.B. several times. Brice had been taken into 
custody at this location and J.L.A. and G.J.B. had been transported to St Vincent Hospital for 
their injuries. Information was that J.L.A. would be able to speak and give a statement but that 
G.J.B. was in serious condition and it was not sure if he would survive. 
 
I responded to St Vincent Hospital located 835 S VanBuren Street in the City of Green Bay, to 
take statements and get and update on the victims in the incidents. Upon arriving at the 
Hospital, I joined Officers Alex Carlson and Ainsworth who were present in the Emergency 
Room outside the Trauma Rooms. I was informed that G.J.B. was in Trauma room #10 and 
that J.L.A. was in Trauma room number #11. 
 
The doors on Trauma Room #10 where G.J.B. was located were open and I could see a large 
number of hospital personnel working on G.J.B..  During my time outside of the trauma room, I 
did overhear and was briefly informed by hospital personnel that G.J.B. had a large number of 
blood transfusions due to the extent of injuries and because of all of the large amount of blood 
transfusions his blood had basicity lost it clotting factor and they were not able to stop the 
bleeding and were not able to control the bleeding at that time and they were just attempting to 
stabilize G.J.B. so they could get him into surgery. G.J.B. was in the Trauma room being 
worked on and was able to be brought to surgery until I had completed speaking with J.L.A..  
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Upon making contact with J.L.A. in Trauma Room #11, I was able to observe a laceration on 
the right side of her face along the jaw line. The injury had not been sutured yet and J.L.A. was 
cooperative and did allow me to photo photograph and document the lacerations to the right 
side of her face, right shoulder, and right thigh. I also photographed a number of bruises 
on J.L.A.'s legs some of which she indicated where older but others were new and had not 
been there prior to the attack. The first laceration was on the right side of J.L.A.'s face starting 
at the jaw line she had a laceration looked similar to a "Z".  It was approximately 3 cm long and 
then cut backward/down for approximately 2 cm and then continued on for approximately 2 
cm.  
 
The second laceration was on the right shoulder of J.L.A. she had a laceration in the 
area/crease where the shoulder goes into the armpit. This laceration was approximately 3 cm 
long. The third laceration was on the right outside thigh.  This laceration was about 3 cm wide 
and appeared to be deeper and as if it had been created by more of a stabbing motion than a 
cutting motion as observed in the other two injuries. I was informed that all of the 
lacerations/stabs would require stiches/sutures as part of the treatment. J.L.A. also had a 
number of bruises and scratches/abrasions on her legs. She did indicate that some of the 
bruises were old but pointed out several of the bruises and abrasions that she did not 
remember having prior to the attack. Photographs were taken of her legs. 
 
J.L.A. indicated that she was willing to speak to me but she did seem shaken up and several 
times during the interview she stopped to take a short break. She also indicate that she was 
having a hard time remembering everything because she was shaken up over what had 
occurred. I informed J.L.A. that I would follow-up with her in several days after she had some 
time to relax to see if she was able remember or recall any more details about what had 
occurred. 
 
I did speak to J.L.A. about when she had been brought into the bathroom by the suspect.  
J.L.A. did indicate that she did not think that the male had been able to or had gotten a chance 
to remove any of her clothing.  I did ask her if the suspect had started to remove any of his 
clothing or exposed himself to her and she told me that she did not remember him removing 
any clothing but did mention that she was having a hard time remembering everything and that 
she was having a hard time with her thoughts.  I explained to J.L.A. that is why I would follow-
up with her again in a few days and that if at any time she was not sure about something or 
could not remember something to just let me know.   
 
J.L.A. indicated that she had gotten to work at the bar around 5:45 pm to bartend. The start of 
her shift was 6pm. When she arrived at the bar there were a few patrons at the bar along with 
the bartender she was relieving. J.L.A. said that she sat around for a bit talking with the 
bartender and some of the patrons and had something to eat.  Around 6pm she started 
working as the bartender and shortly later the bartender that she had taken over for left and 
the rest of the of patrons that had been in the bar slowly stated to leave until J.L.A. was the 
only one left in the bar. J.L.A. told me that she was not sure how long she had been in the bar 
by herself but indicated that it had been enough time that she was going to start cleaning 
around the bar. J.L.A. indicated that this is when the male suspect, later identified as the 
defendant Wesley J. Brice DOB: 9/29/98 came into the bar. She did indicate that she has 
never seen the male before or seen the male in the bar before. The male was described as a 
male with a darker complexion with dark hair with a stocky build.  
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J.L.A. indicated to me that the males behavior was off and that he seemed to be acting weird 
but did say that they do get drunk people that walk in every once and a while so she was not 
really worried about the males behavior at that time. She did indicate that the male did make a 
comment to her and said, "I like you." At first J.L.A. told me she did not think much of it and just 
laughed it off but the male continued acting weird and saying things like, "I like  you."   After a 
while, J.L.A. started to get concerned about the male and was going to call her boss. The male 
then started to continue to talk to J.L.A. and made a comment, "Come with me." and J.L.A. told 
the male "No." 
 
The male then started to walk behind the bar and J.L.A. started to tell the male that he could 
not come back behind the bar. J.L.A. indicated that she then decided that she was going to call 
the police and started to reach for her phone. When J.L.A. reached for her phone the male 
grabbed her arm and the phone and took the phone away from her.  J.L.A. told me that she 
could not remember which hand the male had grabbed her arm and phone with because of 
how her mind was still racing and did not want to give me incorrect information. 
 
After the male grabbed her arm and took the phone away from J.L.A., he was still holding onto 
her arm and this is when she noticed that the male was holding a knife in the other hand. The 
male continued to hold onto J.L.A.'s arm and was telling her that she needed to come with him 
and was leading her to the men's bathroom. J.L.A. indicated that she was trying to remain calm 
and was talking to the male and saying things to the male such as, "Please don't do this."  The 
male continued to walk J.L.A. into the men's bathroom and when they got into the bathroom 
the male was blocking the door and he pushed J.L.A. and forced her against the wall and on 
top of the back of the toilet.  J.L.A. continued during this time to ask the male, "Please don't do 
this." 
 
In speaking with J.L.A. it did become apparent to me that J.L.A. realized that the male was 
going to assault her and was using force along with the knife to try to accomplish the assault. 
J.L.A. was shaken up and in her state I did not want her not be able to finish speaking to me 
about what had occurred.  As planned I will follow-up with J.L.A. in a few days after she has 
had some time to process what occurred and speak to her about what she thought was going 
to happen more directly. J.L.A. did tell me that this is when she decided to start fighting back 
started to gestured with her hands and arms like she was pulling and punching. J.L.A. did tell 
me that she started to push back and hit the male with her hands and that this is when the 
male had to start to stab her.  J.L.A. told me that she does not really remember getting stabbed 
or cut but that she knows that she was not stabbed or cut prior to walking in the bathroom and 
fighting back and that the male had not cut or stabber her once she got out of the bathroom. 
J.L.A. did tell me that she realized later that she had been stabbed in the face, shoulder, and 
thigh after she got away.  As J.L.A. was fighting back against the male she was able to get 
around the male and to the door of the bathroom.  She then ran out of the bathroom and 
towards the front door of the bar. As J.L.A. was running out of the bar she was screaming and 
ran to the bar next door which would be Rumrunners. J.L.A. said that she ran into the bar 
screaming and yelling for help and told me that she thought she ran into the bathroom of the 
bar.  J.L.A. told me that she was so scared she remembered locking herself in the bathroom at 
one point. J.L.A. also indicated that while she was in the bathroom she heard a really loud 
crash or bang from outside the bathroom but she did not see what had occurred. In speaking 
with her J.L.A. she told me that she was very scared and that she can remember two females 
that had been in the bar giving her first aid and applying pressure to her wounds and trying to 
calm her down till the police and rescue arrived. After I finished speaking with J.L.A., I stepped 
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out to check on G.J.B. who was still in the trauma room trying to be stabilized for surgery. 
G.J.B. was finally stable enough for him to be moved from the trauma room to surgery 
however I was told that G.J.B. was not doing well. G.J.B. was transported to surgery around 
11pm. I was later told that G.J.B. had coded twice in the Trauma room and that one of the 
times it was for over 10 minutes. It was also later reported that G.J.B. had coded once in the 
elevator while being transported to surgery. 
 
As of this time the Hospital and the police department had not been able to locate or identify 
any family members for G.J.B.. G.J.B.'s clothing were covered and soaked in blood and a 
wallet was located in the pants pocket. The Wisconsin Driver's License did identify the male as 
G.J.B. DOB: 11/17/1950.  
 
After arriving at the station, I was there only a short time when I was informed that G.J.B. had 
coded again in surgery. It was decided that I would then go back up to the hospital and wait up 
there and attempt to contact family. Upon arriving at the hospital I was escorted to the surgical 
unit and I was informed at that time that they had been able to again stabilize G.J.B.. Shortly 
after arriving at the hospital I was informed that they had been able to stabilize G.J.B.'s 
condition. I was informed that after they had finished with surgery G.J.B. would be getting 
transported to 6th floor ICU. Shortly after 2am on 03/16/2021, I was contacted by St Vincent 
Hospital and informed that G.J.B. had died just after 2am. I responded to the St Vincent 
Hospital and went to 6th floor ICU. Deputy Lead Medical Investigator Stephanie Jordan from 
the Brown County Medical Examiner's Office was present upon my arrival.  
 
9.  Your affiant reviewed the medical records of J.L.A. from St. Vincent Hospital which indicate 
that J.L.A. received multiple sutures or stitches for her injuries and that she was seen by a 
trauma surgeon. Said reports indicate that the right lower cheek and upper neck wound that 
J.L.A. suffered in this incident was closed by plastic surgery. In addition, the right upper arm 
and right thigh lacerations suffered by J.L.A. were closed by the emergency department 
physician. 
 
10.  Your complainant's review of the reports of Det. David Graf of the Green Bay Police 
Department, who indicates:  On 3/15/21 at approximately 8:20 PM I, Detective Graf, with the 
Green Bay Police Department arrived at the police department after having been asked to 
assist in a double stabbing investigation. Upon my arrival I was briefed by Detective Biller. 
Detective Biller advised that a suspect, identified as Wesley J. Brice (7/16/1998), was in 
custody and in an interview room at the police department. I was informed that Brice had 
attempted to assault and then stabbed a victim, identified as J.M.A. (2/23/1993), while she was 
a bartender at Rockabillie's bar located at 709 S. Broadway St. She then went into the Rum 
Runner's bar located next to Rockabillie's at 715 S. Broadway St where she asked for help. It 
was then reported that Green Bay officers also responded to the 800 Blk of S. Broadway St in 
front of Richard Cranium's bar, located at 840 S. Broadway St, for a report of a male stabbing 
another male in a vehicle stopped on the street. The victim in the vehicle was identified as 
G.J.B. (11/17/1950) who later passed away due to his injuries. 
 
I observed through video monitoring that Brice was located in interview room 1. Brice 
appeared to be in an excited state as he was standing still handcuffed, pacing back and forth 
and he continually repeated his name "Wesley Brice" over and over again. At one point Brice's 
pants that he was wearing fell down to the floor and he stepped out of him. Based upon my 
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training and experience and through observing Brice's behavior and mannerisms he showed 
signs of being under the influence of some sort of substance. 
 
I made the decision that due to his behavior Brice could not be interviewed at this time. It was 
then decided to transport Brice to Aurora hospital for medical clearance as to any medical 
condition was not known. While officers attempted to prepare Brice for transport he became 
combative. At one point I did ask Brice if he knew where he was and he responded that he was 
at "Jail". I also asked Brice if he knew what day it was and he said he did not. Brice continued 
to be combative and was placed into a restraint system by several officers. Brice was then 
transported to Aurora hospital. 
 
I then started to prepare a search warrant to obtain a sample of Brice's blood/DNA. In 
preparation for the warrant I spoke with other officers and detectives. I talked with Officer 
Rueckl who was one of the first officers to respond to the scene. Officer Rueckl first responded 
to the 700 Blk of S. Broadway St but was then directed to the 800 Blk of S. Broadway St in 
front of Richard Cranium's bar. Officer Rueckl informed me that when he arrived on scene he 
observed the operator of a Jaguar vehicle that was stopped in the road, G.J.B., to be bleeding 
profusely. Rueckl then stated that he assisted in taking Wesley Brice into custody. Officer 
Rueckl stated that Brice was acting in a manic state and he would say "I am God", "Jesus told 
me to do this" and "Take me to Jail". 
 
I also spoke with Detective Kempf who had contact with J.L.A. the bartender at Rockabillie's 
bar. J.L.A. informed Detective Kempf that she was working alone in the bar when Brice 
entered. J.L.A. reported that Brice was acting "weird" and Brice would tell J.L.A. "I like you", 
"Come with me". J.L.A. attempted to call the police but Brice was able to take her phone away. 
J.L.A. reported that Brice had a knife in his hand and he directed her to the bathroom in the 
bar. J.L.A. stated that she believed that she was going to be sexually assaulted and then killed 
so she started to fight back against Brice. It was then that J.L.A. sustained injuries to her face, 
shoulder and thigh by Brice using his knife. J.L.A. was able to get away from Brice and she ran 
into Rum Runner's bar. 
 
On 3/16/21 myself and Detective Kempf made contact with the residents at 1151 University 
Ave in the lower apartment which is Brice's last known address. At the residence we made 
contact with Brice's parents who identified themselves as D.M.C. and K.A.B. K.A.B. had 
answered the door and when I asked her if a Wesley Brice lived at the residence she 
responded by saying that he did but that he was not home. I asked K.A.B. if she knew where 
her son was and she said that she did not. Due to the ongoing nature of the investigation the 
only information provided to the parents at this time is that Brice was involved in a disturbance, 
he was OK and he was in custody.  I asked both parents about when was the last time they 
saw Brice. Both reported seeing Brice at their residence on University Ave on 3/15/21. D.M.C. 
stated that it was around 1 PM when he saw Brice right before he left to go to work. K.A.B. was 
not sure of the time but she believed it could have been around 6 to 6:30 PM when she last 
saw Brice at their house. K.A.B. stated that Brice did leave but she did not see him leave.  I 
asked if Brice owned a vehicle and D.M.C. stated that Brice does have a burgundy Ford 
Taurus. Both parents reported that Brice had been acting strange for the last two days. Both 
parents stated that Brice was acting in a somewhat manic state, appeared to be happy and 
Brice would make statements like "I love God", and "God and the Devil exist". I asked the 
parents if Brice had acted like this before in the past and both reported that he has not.  It was 
asked if Brice had any medical or psychological conditions. Both parents were not aware of 
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any medical conditions and both stated that Brice was not taking any medications. Both 
parents also reported that Brice has never been diagnosed with a mental disorder and has not 
sought treatment in the past but both reported that they have their own mental health issues 
and believe that Brice did have some also. Both were asked if Brice used any illegal drugs or 
excessive alcohol. Again both parents reported that they knew that Brice smoked marijuana 
but that was it. 
 
11.  Your complainant's review of the reports of Det. Jason Leick of the Green Bay Police 
Department, who indicates:  On Monday 03-15-21 at approximately 8:15P.M. I, Det Leick, 
received a phone call requesting me to come to the Green Bay PD to assist in the investigation 
of a double stabbing. Lt. J. Allen advised a male suspect was in custody and at the police 
department and two victims were at a local hospital. I responded to the PD and was briefed of 
this incident by Captain Ben Allen. We were advised a male suspect, Wesley J. Brice 07-16-
98, entered Rockabilly 's bar, 709 S Broadway, and attempted to assault the female bartender 
and then stabbed her before she was able to get away and run to the neighboring bar, Rum 
Runner 's 715 S. Broadway, scream for help, and locked herself in the women 's bathroom. 
Brice then drives his vehicle into the front entrance of Rum Runner 's Bar before running off to 
the south. Currently a train was going through and traffic was blocked in the 800 block of S. 
Broadway. Brice approaches a south bound vehicle stopped for the train and stabs the driver 
several times before patrons of Richard Cranium's Bar, 840 S. Broadway, assist in holding 
Brice down until police arrived. Brice was in custody and in interview room at the PD. 
Information was the female victim, J.L.A. and the male victim, G.J.B. were at St. Vincent 
Hospital receiving treatment. 
 
Brice was in an interview room which had the audio/ video recording active. In observing Brice 
in the interview room, he was pacing back and forth and mumbling, I could hear him saying 
over and over "Wesley Brice" and "God knows the floor".  He was ranting about his name and 
God. I could see Brice was wearing a gray Nike hooded sweatshirt, tan pants, and black 
socks. He was not wearing any shoes. On the front of the gray Nike sweatshirt on the right 
side of the front pocket I could see some red stains, based on my training and experience the 
red stains appeared to be blood stains.  Brice had a beard and had short hair that appeared to 
have been recently shaved. 
 
I was asked to review all CCTV video surveillance of this incident. Video surveillance was 
recovered from Rockabilly 's, Rum Runners, Richard Cranium 's and the Lion's Den, 836 S. 
Broadway by Forensic Specialist K. McMullen and M. Czarneski. Rockabilly 's CCTV 
surveillance video review, which was reported to be one hour slow, so if real time is 7:00PM 
the video would be 6:00P.M. Several camera views were recovered from 03-15-21 starting at 
5:30P.M. (camera time).  Camera labeled #0 was mounted in the bar towards the rear of the 
bar facing the west showing the bar and the front door. J.L.A. is behind the bar working as 
there are patrons in and out the bar. J.L.A. appears to be working alone. At 6:13P.M. two 
males exit the bar leaving J.L.A. alone. J.L.A. works behind the bar cleaning until 6:34:45 P.M. 
when a male enters the front door. The male is wearing a gray Nike hooded sweatshirt, tan 
pants, black shoes, and appears to have a white lighter hanging from his waist. The male has 
a beard and has the hood over his head. I can identify this male as Wesley Brice, from seeing 
him earlier in the interview room. Brice goes to the corner of the bar and appears to be talking 
with J.L.A.. They talk for about one minute and as J.L.A. walks towards the front door behind 
the bar Brice goes behind the bar at 6:35:35. J.L.A. immediately appears to tell him to get back 
from behind the bar as she is waving her hand at him and guides him back from behind the 
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bar. Brice leaves the area behind the bar and disappears off this camera for a few seconds as 
J.L.A. picks up her cell phone. She appears to be starting to use her cell phone and at 6:36:02 
Brice reappears on this video quickly grabbing at J.L.A.. She attempts to pull away, but Brice 
grabs her cell phone away from her. She then grabs for the bar phone, but Brice follows her 
behind the bar taking this phone away from her. It appears as Brice removes an item from his 
right sweatshirt pocket as he approaches J.L.A., he keeps his right hand with the item behind 
his right leg. Brice appears to be talking to J.L.A. as she has both her hands up in front of her 
trying to keep him at a distance. She moves past him moving away from him, but he follows 
her closely and at 6:36:27 Brice appears to grab her right hand with his left hand as they go 
out of camera view towards the rear of the bar. As they go out of camera view the item Brice 
has in his right hand behind his back appears to be a knife. At 6:36:51 J.L.A. reappears on this 
camera running from the rear of the bar towards the front door, leaving the front door at 
6:36:54P.M. and was last seen going to the south. Brice does not reappear on this camera in 
the bar. At 6:37:16 a vehicle is seen driving towards the west out a window quickly. This 
vehicle is then seen turning south on Broadway in the northbound lane. 
 
Camera labeled #1 is mounted on the inside of the bar pointed to the west showing the front 
corner of the bar and the front door. Brice is seen coming to the front door from the north.  A 
closer view of the vehicle seen leaving shows a red four door sedan. 
 
Camera labeled #2 is mounted in the bar and faces the east showing the rear corner of the 
bar, the pool table and the hall to the bathrooms and the rear door. This camera picks up Brice 
as he had disappeared off camera #1 and as he appears to be talking with J.L.A., he has his 
right hand in his sweatshirt pocket. He disappears off this camera for a short period and 
reappears at 6:36:28 pulling J.L.A. by her right arm with his left arm to the west towards the 
rear door and into a room to the right (south, later learned to be the men 's bathroom). An item 
is seen in Brice 's right hand as he pulls J.L.A. towards the bathroom. J.L.A. attempts to resist 
but is forcefully pulled into the bathroom at 6:36:34P.M. and the door closes. At 6:36:49 P.M. 
J.L.A. appears running out of the bathroom towards the front door. It appears as her dress is 
pulled up and her black stockings are pulled down or ripped. The right front part of her shirt 
also appears to be pulled down. Brice exits the bathroom at 6:36:50P.M. and watches J.L.A. 
run off. He appears to have something in his right hand as he exits the bar at the rear door at 
6:36:55P.M. 
 
Cameras labeled #5 and #6 are mounted in the bar showing the cash register from directly 
above. These cameras show Brice taking J.L.A.'s cell phone and the bar phone away from her 
setting it on the shelf behind the bar.  Based on the times from the cameras, Brice enters the 
bar at 16:34:45 and exits at 16:36:55, Brice was in the bar for a total of two minutes and ten 
seconds. Brice drags J.L.A. into the bathroom at 6:36:34 and she exits at 6:36:49 so they were 
in the bathroom for fifteen seconds. I took several still photos off the videos which are attached 
to the case file. The item Brice has in his right hand and behind his back, based on my training 
and experience, is consistent with being a knife. Rum Runner 's CCTV surveillance video 
review, which was reported to be on time. Several camera views were recovered from 03-15-
21 starting at 19:07. 
 
Camera labeled camera 01 is mounted on the outside of the building at the front door pointed 
north towards the front door. At 19:36:13 J.L.A. is seen running from the north, she has her 
right hand near the right side of her neck. She runs into Rum Runners one second later. At 
19:36:35 a male, later identified as J.T.H. 08-06-55, exits the front door. J.T.H. is on the phone 
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at this point and immediately as he exits looks to the north, towards Rockabilly's. J.T.H. is on 
the phone as his attention moves to the west and at 19:36:47 he begins to move to the north 
on the sidewalk as a red vehicle jumps the curb, just missing J.T.H.. If J.T.H. had not moved, 
he would have been struck by this vehicle. The vehicle strikes the front door area of Rum 
Runner 's Bar. J.T.H. moves to the north to the front of a parked vehicle as the driver exits the 
red vehicle. As the driver exits, I can see the male is Wesley Brice and he has an object in his 
right hand, similar to the object seen in Rockabilly's video.  Brice's attention is on the bar and 
jumps across the hood of the vehicle into the entryway of Rum Runners. Three seconds later 
Brice is seen coming out of entryway, jumping over hood of vehicle, and leaves southbound. 
J.T.H. comes out from behind the parked vehicle on to the sidewalk and is on the phone. 
 
Camera labeled camera 02 is also mounted on the outside of the building at the front door but 
is pointed to the south towards the front door. In this angle when Wesley Brice is seen leaving 
the entryway a black object is clearly seen in his right hand. This black object is consistent with 
the object seen in his right hand in all the previous videos. Brice is last seen running to the 
south on the east sidewalk.  
 
Camera labeled camera 06 is mounted inside the bar near the front door looking to the east 
showing the bar and rear door. Four patrons, two males and two females, are seen in this 
video at the bar with J.T.H. working. At 19:36:16 all parties in the bar attention is at the front 
door. J.L.A. appears one second later running in the bar towards J.T.H., who is near the back 
of the bar. J.L.A. is holding the right side of her neck. She runs directly to J.T.H. appearing to 
say something to him. J.T.H. immediately starts to move towards the front door grabbing his 
cell phone. J.L.A. goes to the bar area near the four patrons as J.T.H. appears to be using his 
cell phone and move towards the front door. One of the two female patrons quickly takes 
J.L.A. towards the rear of the bar turning north into a room, later learned to be the women's 
bathroom.  At 19:36:48 the camera shakes making it appear as the building was struck and the 
patrons all quickly move away from the front of the building to the rear. Two other patrons, who 
were not seen in this video angle are seen running from the front of the bar to the rear.  One of 
the male patrons grabs his cell phone off the bar and appears to start to use it. Some of the 
patrons had exited the rear door but come back inside. It is unclear where J.L.A. had retreated 
to, but the two female patrons are near the women 's bathroom door and appear to be keeping 
J.L.A. safe. Green Bay Police enter the rear door at 19:43:51 and go directly into the female 
bathroom. 
 
Camera labeled camera 07 is mounted inside the bar and faces west towards the front door. At 
19:36:40 a vehicle is seen driving south in the northbound lane of Broadway. The vehicle stops 
in front of the bar, goes in reverse, and then strikes the main entryway at 19:36:49. At this time 
a male in red sweatshirt is near the front door and jumps back. Brice comes to the 
front door and appears to be trying to enter the bar but cannot as the vehicle striking the 
building had damage the entryway preventing the use of the door. 
 
Camera labeled camera 08 is mounted inside the bar near the rear door facing east at the rear 
door. It shows J.L.A. entering the bathroom and exiting but when the vehicle strikes the front 
entryway, she is seen running back into the bathroom and shutting the door. J.L.A. remains in 
the bathroom receiving aid from the two female patrons until the police arrive. 
 
Camera labeled camera 11 is mounted inside the bar facing west near the front door showing 
the front door and the sidewalk directly outside the front door. In this view two patrons are seen 
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sitting at the bar near the front window, a male wearing the red hooded sweatshirt and a 
female.  When J.L.A. enters their attention is on her and appears to show concern for her. 
They both turn their attention to J.T.H. and the vehicle outside. J.T.H. is seen jumping out of 
the way of the vehicle and narrowly escapes being struck as the vehicle strikes the entryway, 
the two front patrons jump back and then run to the rear of the bar. Brice is seen attempting to 
pull at the front door, but it does not open, and he leaves to the south.  
 
Lion's Den CCTV surveillance video review, which was reported to be one minute fast. One 
camera view was recovered from 03-15-21 labeled CH03 and no time is stamped on the video. 
Thirty-nine minutes into the video, a dark colored four door sedan is seen driving south on 
Broadway, later identified as G.J.B. vehicle. It appears to stop in traffic just out of the camera 
view to the south. At this same time movement is seen on the eastside of Broadway. The video 
shows a person wearing a dark hooded sweatshirt and light pants appear from near a parked 
semi and move to the south out of camera view.  At forty minutes and thirty-two seconds into 
the video two police officers are seen running south on the west sidewalk of Broadway. A 
marked patrol squad approaches right after. This video is grainy. 
 
Richard Cranium's CCTV surveillance video review, which was reported to be four minutes 
fast. One camera view was recovered from 03-15-21 starting at 7:00 P.M. This camera is 
labeled front door and is mounted on the outside of the building facing north showing the front 
of the door area and Broadway to the north. The area of Rockabilly 's and Rum Runners is 
seen on this video to the north.  At 7:37:09 P.M. a northbound train is seen. At 7:38:45P.M. a 
vehicle is seen stopping at the RR crossing southbound on Broadway. This vehicle appears to 
be a red Isuzu SUV with one occupant, unable to get the license plate. At 7:39:4P.M. a white 
four door sedan stops behind the red Isuzu. At 7:40:58P.M. a vehicle is seen near Rockabilly's 
bar going south in the northbound lane. It stops and goes in reverse and then drives towards 
the buildings. At 7:41:29P.M. a shadow is seen moving east along the south side of the 
buildings near Rum Runners. At this time, the train is still northbound and would have prevent 
anyone from going to the east, there is also a fence along the RR tracks from the alleyway 
behind Rockabilly 's and Rum Runners following the RR tracks. The shadow disappears 
moving to the east. At 7:42:49P.M. G.J.B. stops behind the white sedan and a subject is seen 
on the east side of Broadway appearing from near a parked semi. One minute and twenty 
seconds is the time between seeing the shadow to the north and the figure appearing near the 
semi. The figure appears on the east sidewalk of S. Broadway and turns south. The figure is 
wearing a gray hooded sweatshirt, tan pants and black shoes. This person runs out into 
Broadway and approaches the driver 's side of G.J.B. 's vehicle at 7:43:08P.M. A fourth light 
colored unknown vehicle is now stopped behind G.J.B.. As Wesley Brice approaches the 
driver's side door, he appears to try to open the door, but it does not open. He then 
immediately strikes the driver 's side window with his right hand three times forcefully. It 
appears as Brice cannot make entry and starts to move to the southwest but as he does the 
driver's side door opens. Brice turns around and goes to the open door and attempts to pull 
G.J.B. out of the vehicle. As this is happening the vehicle parked behind G.J.B. 's starts to 
back up and the two people in the white sedan in front of G.J.B. appear to be looking at what is 
going on through the mirrors. Brice appears to be attempting to pull G.J.B. out of the driver's 
seat and at 7:43:29P.M. Brice is seen starting to strike at G.J.B. with his right hand. Brice 
strikes at G.J.B. several times and at 7:43:36P.M. the driver of the white vehicle, later ID as 
A.S.R., exits the vehicle as Brice is continuing to strike at G.J.B.. The front passenger in the 
white vehicle, later ID as A.R., also exits and A.S.R. and A.R. approach the driver's side door 
of G.J.B. 's vehicle. Brice is still attacking G.J.B. as A.S.R. and A.R. near the driver's door; they 
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both attempt to intervene and are seen trying to pull Brice away from G.J.B. with no luck. They 
both quickly back off and run back towards their vehicle. A.S.R. runs to the driver 's side door 
of the red Isuzu and A.R. runs to the front door of Richard Cranium's. The struggle continues in 
the driver's seat area of G.J.B.'s vehicle. A.R. enters Richard Cranium's Bar at 7:44:10P.M. 
and almost immediately a male, later identified as M.P.W., exits the front door.  A.S.R. runs 
towards M.P.W. appearing to tell him something as he was walking towards G.J.B.'s vehicle 
but then begins to run. M.P.W. runs to the driver's door of G.J.B.'s vehicle and immediately 
intervenes and is attempting to pull Brice out of the vehicle. At the same time two Green Bay 
Officers, Officer B. Snyder and Grant Fischer, are seen running from the north towards this 
area. Several other patrons from Richard Cranium's exit the bar and move to help. A Green 
Bay PD squad, Officer Garrick Fisher, pulls up to scene.  At 7:44:32P.M. Officers Snyder and 
Fischer approach the driver's side of G.J.B.'s vehicle and appear to start to make 
announcements as M.P.W., who had been pulling at Brice, immediately turns and sees the 
officers and complies with their orders. Officer Fisher arrives and the three officers take control 
until other officers arrive. The northbound train clears the intersection at 7:50:05P.M. and the 
red Isuzu drives off, the driver never gets out of this vehicle. Unable to get the license plate of 
the red Isuzu. I went back into this video to try to locate Brice's vehicle prior to these incidents. 
At 7:37:56P.M. a southbound vehicle on Broadway turns east near Rockabilly's bar. No other 
vehicles were seen entering or leaving this area until Brice leaves at 7:40:58P.M.Based off this 
video and using this cameras time Brice's vehicle is seen at 7:38PM and he is confronted by 
police approximately six minutes later at 7:44P.M.   
 
12.  Your complainant's review of the reports of Det. Kevin Kempf of the Green Bay Police 
Department, who indicates:  On 03/17/2021, I went to the autopsy that had been scheduled for 
G.J.B. DOB: 11/17/1950 at the Dane County Medical Examiner's Office located at 3111 Luds 
Lane in McFarland, WI. Upon arrival at the location, I met with Dr. Vincent Tranchida who was 
going to be performing the autopsy.  I spoke with Dr. Tranchida and gave him the general 
background on the case before the autopsy started.  Upon the autopsy being completed Dr. 
Vincent Tranchida did talk to me about the preliminary finding of the autopsy.  These findings 
are not the official autopsy and are only preliminary.  The findings need to be reviewed and are 
subject to change. The initial finding for the cause of death for G.J.B. was Homicide (stabbed 
by other with knife). It was determined that G.J.B. had five stab wounds.  The five stab wounds 
consisted of one to the left temple, one to the right temple, one to the right of midline upper 
chest, one to the upper right chest, and one to the right shoulder. The two stab wounds to the 
chest were the most serious wounds, approximately 5-6 inches in depth, causing damage to 
the right lung, resulting in the severing of the right internal mammary artery. One of the chest 
stab wounds also appeared to nick the spinal column. G.J.B. also had more than 15 incised 
and puncture wounds to the chin area, chest and hands. There were also signs of blunt force 
trauma on different locations of G.J.B.. When the autopsy was completed, I was briefed on the 
initial preliminary results and several items collected during the autopsy were turned over to 
me and documented on a property/evidence release form. I later placed these items into 
evidence at the Green Bay Police Department. 
 
13.  Your complainant's review of the reports of Det. Jason Leick of the Green Bay Police 
Department, who indicates:  On Wednesday 03-24-21 I made phone contact with J.T.H. J.T.H. 
informed me he was doing as well as can be expected. I explained to him that I was calling in 
reference to the damage to the Rum Runners building. J.T.H. informed me that he did not own 
the building and reported it was owned by P.D.J. He explained that on the night of this incident 
he had called a carpenter friend of his to come and secure the building. The building was 

Case 2021CF000520 Document 2 Filed 04-01-2021 Page 24 of 25



STATE OF WISCONSIN - VS -  Wesley James Brice 

03/31/2021 25 

secured but no bill has been submitted yet. He stated he is working with his insurance to get 
an estimate on the extent of the damage. He was told it would be between $4000.00 and 
$6000.00 as some of the building was knocked off its foundation. When an estimate is 
received, he will notify me. 
 
I called P.D.J. and identified myself and the reason for my call. P.D.J. confirmed he was the 
owner of the building at 715 S. Broadway. He indicated J.T.H. has the insurance on 715 S. 
Broadway. I explained to him that I would be sending him a victim/witness from as he is the 
owner.  
 
14.  Your complainant's review of the records from the Wisconsin Circuit Court Access 
Program/Triple I/CIB, indicates that the defendant, Wesley J. Brice (d.o.b. 9-29-98), was 
convicted in Brown County Case 17CF677.  Said records indicate that on or about April 2, 
2018, there was a disposition in said case with a Judgment of Conviction on a charge of 
Felony Possession with Intent to Deliver THC.   
 
Complainant believes the records of the Wisconsin Circuit Court Access Program/Triple I/CIB 
to be true and accurate in that they are records kept in ordinary course of business and it is 
within the ordinary course of business to keep said records.   
 
Based on the foregoing, the complainant believes this complaint to be true and correct. 
 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me on 
04/01/21 

Electronically Signed By:  

Jonathan J Gigot 

Assistant District Attorney 

State Bar #: 1096599 

Electronically Signed By:  

Wendy W. Lemkuil 

Complainant 
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